
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

 

  

 

 

                      

                                                                               
   

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, November 22, 2011 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

              
 
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

� November 15, 2011 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
Animal Control 
a. Agreement w/Petsmart Charities    
Board of Equalization 
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103 
Commissioners 
c. Letter to BF Human Services re Lease Payment 
d. Contract w/MRSC for Small Works Roster Membership 
Facilities 
e. Authorization to Prepare Contract w/DNR Systems for Upgrade of OPT022 System 
Fairgrounds 
f. Purchase Authorization of Tables from Mity-Lite, Inc.  
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. No. 000 
Human Services 
h. Substance Abuse Services Agreement, #11/13-SA-ESD-00, w/Educational Service District 

123 
i. Developmental Disabilities Services Agreement, #11/12-DD-AWI-00, w/Ambitions 

Community Support Services, Inc. 
j. Agreement, #11/13-PREV-BFSAC-00, w/Benton Franklin Substance Abuse Coalition for 

Project Alert Program 
k. Agreement, #11/12-DD-ARC-00, w/The Arc of Tri-Cities, for Developmental Disability 

Services  
l. Appointment of M Green as County Designated Mental Health Professional  
m. Agreement, #11/12-DD-GW-00, w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia, Inc. for 

Developmental Disabilities Services 
Juvenile 
n. Interagency Agreement w/Administrative Office of the Courts for Interpreter Funding 

 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 
Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 
commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

Agenda – Board of County Commissioners 
November 22, 2011 
Page Two 
 

 
Personnel  
o. December Employee of the Month Award 
Prosecuting Attorney 
p. Settlement Agreement w/Emmons  
Public Works 
q. Contract w/Allstar Construction Group, Inc. for Piert Road, CID Canal Realignment 
r. Authorization to Proceed w/Construction of Piert Road – CID Realignment 
s. Approval of Recommendation County Engineer Regarding of Red Mountain Interchange 

Project 
t. Approval of 2012 Benton County Road Program 
Sheriff 
u. Purchase Authorization of Vehicle Firearm Racks from Blac-Rac Manufacturing, Inc.    
v. Agreement Extension w/Keefe Commissary Network, LLC 
w. Agreement Extension w/Consolidated Food Management Inc. 

 
   9:05 AM Public Hearing 
 
   (continued) Kennewick Irrigation District Vacation – S Schuetze 
 
   Re-Adoption of the County Road Budget & Certifying Taxes – K Mercer 
     

Scheduled Business:   
  

Comprehensive Gang Initiative – Jacqueline van Wormer 
 
Adult and Juvenile Drug Court – P Austin 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors  
   Board Assignment Update  

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, November 15, 2011, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
Present: Chairman Leo Bowman 
  Commissioner James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Public Works Manager Steve 
Becken; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; Rosie Sparks, Auditor’s Office; Jackie Hill, 
Clerk’s Office; Jacki Lahtinen, District Court; DPA Ryan Brown; DPA Steve Hallstrom; Erhiza 
Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; Nick Kooiker, Treasurer’s Office; Planning Manager Mike 
Shuttleworth; County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; Auditor Brenda Chilton.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of November 8, 2011 were approved.   
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “t”.  
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Central Services 

a. Amending Resolution 11-339 re Purchase From Cross Match Technologies 
b. Authorization for Request for Proposal for Expanding Storage Area Network 
c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0502-101, Dept. 000 

Commissioners 
d. Letter to BF Health District 
e. Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for Benton County Emergency Services 

District Court 
f. Interagency Agreement, #IAA12159, w/St of WA Administrative Office of the 

Courts 
Facilities 

g. Contract w/System Solutions for Superior Court Sound Systems Upgrade  
 



 - 2 - 

Human Services 
h. Reappointment of T Atwood to the Substance Abuse Administrative Board 
i. Agreement, #PSA-2011/12-Shelter Plus Care, w/Lady of Lourdes Hospital   
j. Agreement, #11/12-DD-SA-00, w/Service Alternatives, Inc 
k. Agreement, #11/12-DD-CDC-00, w/Children’s Developmental Center  

Public Works 
l. Contract w/Riggle Plumbing, Inc. to Re-Route Air Lines @ Maintenance Shop 
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650 
n. Contract w/HDR Engineering for Feasibility Study 

Sheriff 
o. Rescinding Resolution 11-568 & Amending Resolution 11-126 Re Dynamic Laundry 

Contract   
p. Notice of Completion for Installation of Jail Dishwasher 
q. Contract w/Rell’s Fire Protection, Inc. for Dishwasher Hood System Cleaning 

Workforce Development 
r. Youth Service Provider Contract w/Career Path Services Employment & Training  
s. Adult Service Provider Contract w/Career Path Services Employment & Training 
t. Dislocated Worker Provider Contract w/Career Path Services Employment & 

Training 
 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 
Lourdes Health Network 
 
John Serle, Barbara Mead, and Frank Beckem, Lourdes Health Network, discussed the proposed 
cuts to cost based reimbursement from Medicaid.  They said it would affect their ability to 
provide services to the most vulnerable client and if the network became unstable, it would affect 
behavioral services and ultimately jails would be inundated with mental health patients.  The 
Board agreed to send a letter in support of the Lourdes Health Network to make sure the State 
understood the impacts of the cuts.   
 
Gang Task  
 
Sheriff Steve Keane, Sgt. Jon Law, and Sgt. Carlos Travino updated the Board on the Benton 
County Gang Task Force.  Sheriff Keane said that significant arrests had been made; 
additionally, that Sgt. Law would be appointed to Jail Captain and so Sgt. Travino would be 
appointed to supervise the gang team.   
 
Sgt. Jon Law updated the Board as follows: 
 

 Operational – all staff now assigned to team; significant activity 
 Goals/objectives 

o Intelligence - working close w/Metro and Criminal Apprehension Team on 
training;  

o Public education – working on flyer to hand out to parents; five presentations to 
community and educators;  



 - 3 - 

o Suppression – working on most criminally active gang members; 7 search 
warrants and 7 felony charges during last month (seized 11 lbs marijuana; 4 
grams of meth; took a vehicle); end of this week issued 8 additional search 
warrants; Prosser graffiti arrests (Grandview residents tagging on county line); 
sent a message they were not welcome here; currently working a criminal 
conspiracy and profiteering case with stolen property.   

o Trends – increased gang activity in East Kennewick and Finley; working on 
strategic planning in that area; receiving very positive feedback from community 

 
Sgt Travino said he would take over where Sgt. Law left off and the gang unit would continue to 
work with the community, Prosecuting Attorney’s office, and community resources and would 
relentlessly investigate these crimes and continue to educate the public.   
 
Mosquito District 
 
Steve Becken said they were contacted by Benton County Mosquito District about constructing a 
storage building for their vehicles at the Prosser maintenance shop site.  He said it appeared the 
building could be accommodated and if the Board concurred, they would prepare an interlocal 
agreement, etc. and bring back to the Board for approval. 
 
Angela Beeler, Mosquito District Manager, said the main office was in W. Richland but 8 
employees lived in the Prosser area and did most of their work there.  She said they currently 
rented space and were proposing a 4,000 sq. foot indoor storage facility with electricity and 
would use the main building for restroom and break area facilities.   
 
The Board agreed to move forward with the proposal.   
 
Executive Session – Union Negotiations 
 
The Board went into executive session at 9:42 a.m. with DPA Steve Hallstrom and David Sparks 
to discuss union negotiations for approximately 15 minutes.  Also present were Ryan Brown, 
Keith Mercer, Loretta Smith Kelty, Melina Wenner, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out 
at 9:57 a.m. Mr. Hallstrom said the Board discussed union negotiations and took no action in 
executive session.  
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Beaver reported on his attendance at the Council of Government executive board 
meeting and his visit at CBC with college students.   
 
Commissioner Small reported on the following:  BCES - Richland and Kennewick would be 
signing the interlocal agreement that was approved by the Board this date; the State had 
tentatively said it would fund $100,000 for the merging of Benton & Franklin County emergency 
services feasibility study; BCES budget – the Sheriff and Chiefs had met and were looking at 
ways to cut costs; Planning Commission public hearing was scheduled on the HB 1886 Critical 
Areas issue; Noxious Weed department was still reviewing options (including furloughs) to deal 



 - 4 - 

with its budget issue.  Mr. Sparks said the Board would need to adopt a furlough policy so the 
employees wouldn’t lose their benefits, if that option were pursued.   
 
Chairman Bowman talked about his tour of the shooting range at Rattlesnake Mountain and said 
it was an amazing facility and reported on his attendance at the Transportation Management 
meeting.  Additionally, he said the Board needed to notify the Elections Department about the 
canvassing board appointment.  Commissioner Small said he would do it.   
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 11/10/2011 
Warrant #: 45025-45334 
Warrant #: 45543-45738 
Total all funds: $606,538.86 
 
Check Date: 11/15/2011 
Warrant #: 233264-233288 
Direct Deposit #: 69146-69347 
Total all funds: $115,907.00 
 
Check Date: 11/15/2011 
Taxes #: 10111114 
Total all funds: $32,075.69 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
11-714 Amending Resolution 11-339 re Purchase From Cross Match Technologies 
11-715 Authorization for Request for Proposal for Expanding Storage Area Network 
11-716 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0502-101, Dept. 000 
11-717 Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement for Benton County Emergency 

Services 
11-718 Interagency Agreement, #IAA12159, w/St of WA Administrative Office of the 

Courts 
11-719 Contract w/System Solutions for Superior Court Sound Systems Upgrade  
11-720 Reappointment of T Atwood to the Substance Abuse Administrative Board 
11-721 Agreement, #PSA-2011/12-Shelter Plus Care, w/Lady of Lourdes Hospital   
11-722 Agreement, #11/12-DD-SA-00, w/Service Alternatives, Inc 
11-723 Agreement, #11/12-DD-CDC-00, w/Children’s Developmental Center  
11-724 Contract w/Riggle Plumbing, Inc. to Re-Route Air Lines @ Maintenance Shop 
11-725 Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0501-101, Dept. 650 
11-726 Contract w/HDR Engineering for Feasibility Study 
11-727 Rescinding Resolution 11-568 & Amending Resolution 11-126 Re Dynamic 

Laundry Contract   
11-728 Notice of Completion for Installation of Jail Dishwasher 



 - 5 - 

11-729 Contract w/Rell’s Fire Protection, Inc. for Dishwasher Hood System Cleaning 
11-730 Youth Service Provider Contract w/Career Path Services Employment & Training  
11-731 Adult Service Provider Contract w/Career Path Services Employment & Training 
11-732 Dislocated Worker Provider Contract w/Career Path Services Employment & 

Training 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:15 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Agreement w/Petsmart Charities









RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY,  WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS  WITHIN CURRENT 
EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 103 
 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds shall be transferred 
as outlined in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this…………………….day of………………….. , 20………… 
 
 
               
                  Chairman of the Board 
 
               
                     Member 
 
               
                     Member  
Attest:  ………………………………..               Constituting the Board of County 

 Clerk of the Board                  Commissioners of Benton County, 
                         Washington  
 

 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 103



EXHIBIT A      BENTON COUNTY  RESOLUTION NO.   
                                                                                              LINE ITEM TRANSFERS 
 
DEPARTMENT: Board of Equalization       DEPARTMENT NO. 103   
 
FUND NAME: Current Expense        FUND NO. 0000-101    
 
TRANSFER FROM:       TRANSFER TO: 
 
BASE SUB 
(6 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
(4 digit) 

LINE ITEM  
NAME 

AMOUNT BASE SUB 
(6 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
(4 digit) 

LINE ITEM 
NAME 

AMOUNT 

514.240 
 

1190 Secretary $1,075.00 514.240 1188 Director $1,075.00 

514.240 
 

1190 Secretary $825.00 514.240 4301 Travel $825.00 

 
 

       

 
EXPLANATION: Funds need to be transferred due to a high volume of appeals.      
                   
                    
Prepared by: Peggy Brown     Date:  11/9/11    
 
Approved  ( ) 
Denied  ( )      Date:       
 
         
         Chairman 
 
         
           Member 
 
         
           Member  
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     11/22/2011   
Subject: Ltr to BFHS 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by: L. Smith Kelty     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____ 
Pass Ordinance  _____ 
Pass Motion  _____ 
Other   _____ 

 

COMMISSIONERS 
Consent Agenda            

__X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Benton County Commissioners entered into a Lease Agreement between Benton County and 
Benton Franklin Human Services for the lease of the Benton County Health District Bldg. per 
Resolution 10-667.   
 
Though Human Services has been making their lease payments on or before the due date, records 
show that their payment for operational expense has come in past the due date numerous times.  
 
Attached is a letter addressed to Ed Thornbrugh, Human Services Administrator encouraging them 
to make the operational expense payment on or before the first day of the month as outline in the 
lease agreement or Benton County will start charging the late fees as outlined in Section 8 of the 
lease agreement starting December 1, 2011.   
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
 
 
 
MOTION 
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Letter to BF Human Services re Lease Payment



 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     
  

                                          
November 22, 2011 
 
 
Mr. Ed Thornbrugh, Administrator 
Benton Franklin Human Services 
7102 W Okanogan Pl 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
Re: Benton-Franklin Human Services Operation Payment  
 
Dear Ed Thornbrugh,  
 
The Benton County Commissioners office is in receipt of the operation payment for the 
month of November, which was received in our office on November 4, 2011.  Though this 
last payment was received within the allotted five (5) days after the due date, records show 
past operating expense payments have not been received by the due date outlined in the lease 
agreement under Section 7.a.iv. 
 
We would like to take this opportunity to encourage you to make the lease payments in 
advance on or before the first day of each month in accordance with the provisions of Section 
7.a. “Operating Expenses” of the lease agreement.    
 
Regretfully, if the operating expense payments continue to be delinquent, the County will 
start charging late fees as outline in Section 8 “Late Charges” of the lease agreement starting 
December 1, 2011.  
 
We appreciate your immediate attention to this matter.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Leo M. Bowman, Chairman  
Benton County Commissioner  
 
cc:  Chairman Robert Koch, Franklin County Commissioner  
      Benton County Commissioners  
      David Sparks, Benton County Administrator  
     Loretta Smith Kelty, Deputy County Administrator 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Contract w/MRSC for Small Works Roster Membership













CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Authorization to Prepare Contract w/DNR Systems for Upgrade of OPT022 System





CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Purchase Authorization of Tables from Mity-Lite, Inc.





CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. No. 000





CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Substance Abuse Services Agreement, #11/13-SA-ESD-00, w/Educational Service District 123







CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Developmental Disabilities Services Agreement, #11/12-DD-AWI-00, w/Ambitions Community Support Services, Inc.







CurrentUser
Text Box
j. Agreement, #11/13-PREV-BFSAC-00, w/Benton Franklin Substance Abuse Coalition forProject Alert Program







CurrentUser
Text Box
k. Agreement, #11/12-DD-ARC-00, w/The Arc of Tri-Cities, for Developmental DisabilityServices







CurrentUser
Text Box
l. Appointment of M Green as County Designated Mental Health Professional







CurrentUser
Text Box
m. Agreement, #11/12-DD-GW-00, w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities Services







CurrentUser
Text Box
n. Interagency Agreement w/Administrative Office of the Courts for Interpreter Funding





CurrentUser
Text Box
o. December Employee of the Month Award





CurrentUser
Text Box
p. Settlement Agreement w/Emmons





CurrentUser
Text Box
q. Contract w/Allstar Construction Group, Inc. for Piert Road, CID Canal Realignment



CurrentUser
Text Box
r. Authorization to Proceed w/Construction of Piert Road – CID Realignment



CurrentUser
Text Box
s. Approval of Recommendation County Engineer Regarding of Red Mountain InterchangeProject



CurrentUser
Text Box
t. Approval of 2012 Benton County Road Program













CurrentUser
Text Box
u. Purchase Authorization of Vehicle Firearm Racks from Blac-Rac Manufacturing, Inc.





CurrentUser
Text Box
v. Agreement Extension w/Keefe Commissary Network, LLC









CurrentUser
Text Box
w. Agreement Extension w/Consolidated Food Management Inc.









CurrentUser
Text Box
(continued) Kennewick Irrigation District Vacation – S Schuetze





CurrentUser
Text Box
Re-Adoption of the County Road Budget & Certifying Taxes – K Mercer













[Type text] 
 

 

 

Comprehensive 
Gang 
Intervention 
Program 
A Proposal Offered by Tri-Cities Gang 
Interventions Valuing Education and 
Safety (TC-GIVES) 
 
This proposal is offered to potential financial partners in an 
effort to combat the gang problem in the Mid-Columbia 
Region. 

 

Gangs

Prevention

Intervention

Suppression

Reintegration

2011 

A Product of TC-GIVES 
6/14/2011 

CurrentUser
Text Box
Comprehensive Gang Initiative – Jacqueline van Wormer



Page 2 of 20 
 

-Forward- 

 

In the first part of 2011 the Benton/Franklin Counties Juvenile Court and Tri-Cities Gang 
Interventions Valuing Education and Safety (TC-GIVES) sought federal grant monies to 
fund a comprehensive gang intervention program. The program was designed to 
provide formal structure and coordination for prevention, intervention and reintegration 
efforts to aid in addressing our regional gang problem. These efforts are intended to 
supplement the suppression efforts currently being undertaken by our local law 
enforcement partners. 

As a part of this grant process, a presentation was made to local city and county 
leaders1

Legitimate points were raised by local leaders during the presentation: 

. The purpose was to obtain support for the grant. They generously agreed to 
support the grant effort. 

- Why were these proposed actions (prevention, intervention and reintegration) being 
delayed until potential grant funding was found – wasn’t there strong enough a need 
for these steps to be undertaken as soon as possible? 

- Wouldn’t these actions be more responsive to local needs if it was administered 
locally, rather than by federal oversight (meeting federal grant requirements)? 

- Wouldn’t sustained funding, rather than temporary funding for the life of the grant, be 
important to the success of this important program? 

As we continued with the grant process, it was learned that the federal monies were no 
longer available. While this was disappointing news, TC-GIVES believes very strongly 
that the need for the prevention, intervention and reintegration efforts still exist. 

Not to be dissuaded by the loss of the federal grant monies, TC-GIVES elected to move 
forward on this very important issue. Our efforts are now focused on attempting to find 
local funding from city and county governments, organizations in the education field, 
charitable organizations, private businesses, and perhaps individual supporters. 

It is important to remember that the gang problem is not a single community issue, nor 
can it be solved with a one dimensional plan. It is a regional problem. Gangs do not 
worry about jurisdictional boundaries, nor should we. A comprehensive plan is needed 
to have the most effective, long-lasting results. Standing alone as single communities or 

                                                           
1 The presentation was made on March 2, 2011 to an audience that included Pasco City Manager Gary Crutchfield, 
Kennewick Mayor Steve Young and City Manager Marie Mosley, Richland Mayor John Fox, West Richland Mayor 
Donna Noski, Benton County Commissioner Leo Bowman, and Franklin County Commissioner Rick Miller. 



Page 3 of 20 
 

individuals will not work – we need to stand together, and work to address this problem 
as a team. 

We hope that the following proposal answers the many questions that you may have. 

We look forward to working with you in the near future in making our regional 
community a safer place to live.  

 

TC-GIVES 

 

 

  



Page 4 of 20 
 

PROPOSAL 

TC-GIVES offers the following proposal to combat our regional gang problem. 

 

Section A: Background 

1. Who is TC-GIVES, and why are they making this proposal? 

The Tri-Cities Gang Interventions Valuing Education and Safety (TC-GIVES) is a group 
that was formed as a result of a September 2009 gang forum meeting2

There currently is no single entity in our region that formally oversees a comprehensive 
approach to the gang problem. Law enforcement agencies are utilizing their current 
available resources to address suppression as effectively as possible.  

  sponsored by 
the Benton/Franklin Counties Juvenile Court. The gang forum meeting identified the 
need for a comprehensive and well-coordinated gang reduction approach for our region. 
Group members, whom represent multiple disciplines that are necessary to address the 
gang problem, were selected. The group has been meeting on a regular monthly basis 
to develop vision, goals, objectives, and conduct a regional community mapping 
exercise and to collect relevant data. TC-GIVES is not a tax-exempt 501(C)(3) 
organization. 

There are some single organizations attempting to individually deal with various aspects 
of the prevention, intervention and reintegration efforts. While well intentioned and doing 
good work in their own right, these efforts are compartmentalized and not well 
coordinated. By proposing this plan TC-GIVES, with representatives from many of these 
disciplines, attempts to create a formalized central point of coordination for prevention, 
intervention and reintegration efforts. 

2. Is a comprehensive effort really needed? 

Local law enforcement, prosecutor offices, juvenile justice and adult Department of 
Corrections have a long history of coordinated gang suppression efforts in our bi-county 
community. But, as research3

                                                           
2 Over 100 people from throughout Benton and Franklin counties participated in the initial meeting. Participants 
represented city and county governments, law enforcement agencies, juvenile justice, courts, educators, civic 
organizations, charitable organizations, faith-based organizations, and individual community leaders. Their 
attendance was spurred by their interest and concern around the gang issue.  

 has shown, suppression efforts are most effective when 
complemented and balanced with prevention, intervention and reintegration options for 

Community interest in the gang problem was again measured when about 250 law enforcement officers, 
educators, prosecutors, juvenile justice workers and other community leaders attended a presentation on May 20, 
2011 in Kennewick by Al Valdez, a professor at the University of Irvine who travel the nation speaking of the gang 
problem. 
3 Howell, 2010 



Page 5 of 20 
 

youth and families. Current data indicates the need to create a comprehensive, 
community-based response to our gang activity that focuses not only on providing 
services and interventions to gang involved youth, but also the necessity of placing a 
heavy focus on increasing the social and human capital of our communities. 

3. Is there really a gang problem in this area? 

One only needs to read, listen or watch the daily news to know that there is a gang 
problem in our area. Gang-related assaults and drive-by shooting are reported weekly. 
But let’s see what the statistics tell us. 

Gang Members and Activities 

• Data provided by law enforcement indicates that in Benton/Franklin Counties 
there are an estimated 1,000 adult and juvenile gang members or associates4

 

. 
Law enforcement gang experts advise that this number is most likely greatly 
under reporting the true amount of gang members in this area. 

• A recent “snapshot”5

 

 produced in November 2010 indicated the Benton/Franklin 
Counties Juvenile Court had 498 youth on probation. This number is consistent 
with the average daily probation population found throughout the year. Of these 
youth on probation, 112 were documented as gang involved.  

Another “snapshot” taken during this same time frame revealed that of the 27 
youth in detention, 18 were identified gang members. These gang-involved youth 
had an average of eight probation violations each. Their criminal histories were 
extensive, with a total 25 felony and 103 misdemeanor convictions among them. 
 

• The 2008 National Youth Gang Survey found that communities with populations 
under 250,000 actually witnessed a significant decrease in gang related activity 
(OJJDP, 2010).  Local data provided by the Pasco Police Department, for their 
city, highlights a reverse trend for our area. Both shootings and violent crimes 
have risen significantly since 2007.  

o 2006-2007:   Violent Gang Crimes:  15 Shootings:  1 
o 2007-2008:  Violent Gang Crimes:  33 Shootings:  4 
o 2008-2009:  Violent Gang Crimes:  43 Shootings:  8 
o 2009-2010:  Violent Gang Crimes:  32 Shootings:  16 

 
                                                           
4 To be listed as a gang member or associate, a person must meet the definition identified in RCW 9A.94.030. Of 
the 1,000 members identified, 85% are adults and 15% are juveniles. 
5 The Benton/Franklin Counties Juvenile Court utilizes an internal database system entitled the Juvenile Tracking 
System (JTS). JTS contains an exhaustive amount of data related to criminal and civilly involved youth and families 
in the juvenile justice system. Within this system, “snapshots” of current court activity can be produced. 



Page 6 of 20 
 

• In a recent community needs assessment6

 

, respondents were asked “What are 
the biggest challenges facing youth under 18 in your community?” Latino adults 
and youth both identified gangs and gang activity as the biggest pressing issue. 

• Don’t be misled into believing this is “just a Pasco or Franklin County problem.” 
Of the 112 gang-involved youth on probation in November 2010, every city was 
represented. And the point should again be re-emphasized; gangs do not worry 
about jurisdictional boundaries, nor should we. 
 
The use of weapons in the commission of gang related crimes is on the rise in 
our region. In the past two years there have been 121 violent gang crimes across 
our two counties.  
 
According to law enforcement intelligence, each of the identified major criminal 
gangs in the Mid-Columbia region are now classified as violent drug 
organizations. This truly is a regional problem. 
 

• Graffiti is another strong indicator of the presence and activity of gangs. Over the 
past two years there have been 2,107 incidents of gang graffiti across Benton 
and Franklin Counties. 

Community Risk Factors and Indicators 

There are documentable community risk factors and indicators that may encourage or 
play a part in youths becoming involved in gangs. These undoubtedly contribute to the 
number of current gang members in our area. But more importantly, these factors and 
indicators represent the environment that may be breeding future gang members. 

• Unemployment rates have a direct effect on the youth in a community. The 
state’s average unemployment rate is 6.4%. In Franklin County, it is 9.5%7. For 
Benton County it is 7.1%8

 

. Franklin County is considered economically distressed 
per federal guidelines. 

• In Washington State, 6.5% of children under the age of 18 live in extreme 
poverty. Franklin County has the second highest rate of extreme poverty in the 
state (12%). Benton County youth also experience extreme poverty with 8.8%. 
 

                                                           
6 Conducted for the Benton/Franklin Counties Juvenile Court by the University of Washington 
7 Office Financial Management, December 2010 
8 Office Financial Management, December 2010 



Page 7 of 20 
 

• Research9

o Youths per 1,000 arrested for criminal offenses

 shows that youth are at “higher risk of joining a gang if they engage in 
delinquent behaviors, are aggressive/violent, . . . have many problems at school . 
. . or live in communities where they feel unsafe.” 

10

o Benton County ranked

: State average; 50 per 
1,000, Benton County; 92 per 1,000, Franklin County; 86 per 1,000.  

11

o Eighth graders reporting

 third in the state for juvenile drug abuse violation 
arrest rates with 926 youth arrested per 100,000.  

12

o Students reporting carrying a weapon to school in the last 30 days: State 
average; 5%, Franklin County; 9% of eighth graders. In addition, 41% of 
Benton County eighth graders report a strong availability of handguns in 
their community. 

 drinking alcohol:  State average; 16%, Franklin 
County; 24%, Benton County; 17% 

o Sixth graders reporting being involved in six or more fights in the last 12 
months: State average; 5%, Franklin County; 9%, Benton County; 7%. 

o Of the eighth graders in Franklin County, 55% were at risk for academic 
failure given their low commitment as indicated by course interest, 
importance of learning, and grades, and 39% report low neighborhood 
attachment. 
 

4. Why can’t a comprehensive plan be enacted without resorting to the 
recommendations made in this proposal? 

The State of Washington has experienced severe economic downturn resulting in a 
$5.5 billion deficit. This has resulted in budget reductions across many different social 
service agencies, including the juvenile court system, mental health, substance abuse 
and Juvenile Rehabilitation Administration. These reductions have created a situation 
whereby youth and families are left to navigate very limited services in the community. 
In a recent local community needs assessment survey13

Nationally recognized gang expert Dr. Al Valdez, speaking in Kennewick in May 2011, 
stated “ . . . if adults are trying to convince kids to dump gangs or not to join them, then 

, Latino parents expressed 
frustration not only about the lack of necessary services for their families, but also the 
institutional barriers that exist in our community, that prohibit them from seeking 
services. Franklin County was recently designated the first “minority/majority” county in 
the state, with 82% of the youth population being Latino. 

                                                           
9 Howell, Office Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention, 2010 gang research and program evaluations 
10 Kids Count Data, 2008 
11 Department Social and Health Services, 2009 
12 2008 Healthy Youth Survey (RMC Research Corporation; Portland, Oregon) administered to sixth and eighth 
graders in all participating middle schools 
13 Conducted for the Benton/Franklin Counties Juvenile Court by the University of Washington 



Page 8 of 20 
 

they need to offer them something else. . . violence is a learned behavior and how 
poverty, racism and bias are factors that lead people to join gangs. It’s going to take a 
community effort.”14

As Dr. Valdez points out, it is going to take a community-wide effort. He recognized our 
area is ahead of most other cities for the collaboration efforts, and that the collaboration 
has a chance of making a major contribution in saving lives. 

 

However, the reality of the situation is that a comprehensive approach outweighs the 
current availability of the time that has been volunteered towards this effort thus far. 
There is a need for formalized central coordination to accomplish these efforts. 
Continued collaboration is needed. But financial support is a critical component in 
moving forward. 

5. How will central coordination be achieved? 

There are a number of community, social and faith-based organizations that currently 
provide services to at-risk youth and their families. TC-GIVES has already compiled a 
list15

This proposal does not attempt to duplicate services already offered. What it does do is 
attempt to create a single point of contact, or “one-stop shopping” for families in need of 
helping their at-risk youth. It is also designed to target specific at-risk youth in an 
attempt to provide them with existing services that may help them leave the gang life 
style.  

 of many of these organizations and their services. Some provide services that deal 
with prevention, intervention and reintegration efforts. But, as previously mentioned, 
these efforts are compartmentalized and not well coordinated. There is no single phone 
number or organization that the family of an at-risk youth can call for help, and be 
directed to multiple organizations that may be best suited to aid them.  

The details outlined in Section B of this proposal identify specific recommendations to 
create formal structure for central coordination of prevention, intervention and 
reintegration efforts. 

6. Won’t financial support for this proposal take away potential monies for 
suppression efforts? 

TC-GIVES recognizes that one of city and county government’s fundamental 
responsibilities is to safeguard its citizens. The primary means of achieving this is 
through suppression efforts by law enforcement agencies. As we have already 
acknowledged, our local law enforcement agencies are utilizing their current available 

                                                           
14 Tri-City Herald, May 21, 2011, pages B1-2. 
15 TC-GIVES has identified at least 134 specific agencies, organizations or groups that could be available to aid at-
risk youth and their families. 



Page 9 of 20 
 

resources as effectively as possible. These agencies will need continued, or even 
increased, funding to continue their efforts. 

We are not attempting to vie for dollars that should be earmarked by city and county 
governments for law enforcement purposes. That is why we are also asking for financial 
support from organizations in the education field, charitable organizations, community 
groups, private businesses, and perhaps individual supporters. We do not expect, nor 
should it be, that city and county governments be solely responsible for funding this 
proposal. But we hope city and county governments are willing to go beyond a one 
dimensional plan that involves funding only suppression efforts. Financial support for a 
comprehensive plan is needed to have the most effective, long-lasting results. 

 

Section B: Comprehensive Plan 

1. Purpose and Goals 

TC-GIVES believes that any plan to deal with the gang problem should counter three 
areas that are promoted in gang activity: 

• Violence and criminal activity. 
• Disruption of the education process, and subsequent impact. 

• Negative peer modeling, which creates future gang members. 

In researching the best way to address the gang problem, TC-GIVES supports a 
national anti-gang model that involves: 

• Prevention: Identifying community and social resources available to aid families 
whose members are contemplating entering the gang lifestyle, and help prevent 
them from becoming involved. Help establish a support system for the family. 
 

• Intervention: Aiding families whose members have become involved in gangs. 
Focus community and social resources to help intervene in an effort to persuade 
them to leave the gang lifestyle, and support the family during the process. 
 

• Suppression: The identification, arrest, prosecution and sentencing of gang 
members who commit criminal violations. Seek appropriate sentencing 
enhancements when proper and available. 
 

• Reintegration: Identify community, social, job and education resources for those 
gang members who have served their sentence and are re-entering the 
community. Help establish a support system to aid them from again becoming an 
active gang member. 



Page 10 of 20 
 

TC-GIVES believes the following principles should guide this plan: 

• The community and involved agencies shall partner to positively impact the lives 
of youth in Benton and Franklin Counties via targeted prevention and intervention 
activities. 
 

• Hold youth accountable for their actions. 
 

• Facilitate the re-entry of youth into the community through education, 
employment, and mentoring opportunities. 

From these principles, four goals have been established: 

1. Reduce criminal gang activity in targeted areas. 
2. Increase awareness and involvement of community members in targeted 

neighborhoods around gang reduction efforts. 
3. Increase school success and academic performance for targeted youth. 
4. Prevent children, youth and at-risk youth from gang involvement, and assist gang 

involved youth to leave the gang lifestyle. 

2. How to Measure Success 

No plan should be implemented without a means of gauging its level of success or 
failure. This plan recommends establishing the following standards: 

• Use data to identify neighborhoods that have the most at-risk youths for gang 
involvement. The neighborhoods will be selected by the Executive Board in 
conjunction with the Program Director. [Identifies the targeted areas for Goals 1-4.] 

o The number of neighborhoods should be reasonable based upon available 
program resources. The number shall be determined by the Executive 
Board in consultation with the Program Director. 

 
• Work with the respective law enforcement agency, for the jurisdiction where the 

neighborhoods are located, to track reported criminal activity. Include identified 
gang members in those neighborhoods. Work with Juvenile Probation to obtain 
necessary data. [Measurement of Goals 1 and 4.] 

o Identify crime statistics for the respective neighborhoods prior to program 
implementation. 

o Track crime statistics for the respective neighborhoods after the program 
has been implemented, based upon time intervals determined by the 
Executive Board in consultation with the Program Director. 

o Identify the number of targeted youth who reoffend. 



Page 11 of 20 
 

o Determine if there is a change in probation violations or recidivism for the 
youth in the respective neighborhoods. 

 
• Conduct surveys in the respective neighborhoods to identify the resident’s 

awareness and involvement of gang reduction efforts. [Measurement of Goal 2.] 
o Conduct a survey prior to program implementation. 
o Conduct follow-up surveys based upon time intervals determined by the 

Executive Board in consultation with the Program Director. 
 

• Track the services provided. [Measurement of Goals 2 and 4.] 
o Number of training requests, and training provided. 
o Number of materials developed. 
o Number of Street Outreach Worker contacts. 
o Number of community meetings held. 
o Number of treatment and intervention plans created for youth and families. 
o Number of youth matched to mentors. 
o Number of youth completing tutoring services. 

 
• Work with schools attended by the targeted youth to measure attendance, 

academic achievement, and social interaction for those youth. [Measurement of 
Goal 3.] 

o Obtain this data for the youth prior to program implementation. 
o Periodically obtain this data on time intervals determined by the Executive 

Board in consultation with the Program Director. 

The Program Director shall provide periodic reports to, and as determined by, the 
Executive Board. 

3. Program Positions and Definitions 

This proposal contains the following program positions and definitions. 

a. Executive Board 

 The Executive Board is comprised of a representative from each organization 
that financially contributes to this plan. Each organization is responsible for 
appointing their respective representative. 

Each organization shall have a single vote (see Voting Members and Non-Voting 
Members below). Majority votes shall rule.  



Page 12 of 20 
 

The Executive Board shall have ultimate control and authority over this plan and 
its programs. This includes the hiring and termination of the Program Director 
and all other paid positions, in conjunction with the Administrative Agency.  

The Board has the right to terminate relationships with any organization, group or 
persons that serve in a volunteer or non-paid position. 

The Board shall make final decisions on plan or program related issues or 
questions. 

The Executive Board shall meet at least quarterly, but may meet as often as it 
deems necessary. 

Executive Board Member’s respective organizations are required to sign and 
abide by the Inter-Local Agreement governing this plan and its programs. 

(1) Voting Member: The Executive Board may establish a threshold for 
financial contributions that separate Voting Members from Non-Voting 
Members. Only votes from Voting Members shall be cast on Board 
decisions. 

(a) For example: The Board may decide that an organization that 
contributes $500 may not deserve a vote on matters that an 
organization that contributes $20,000 should. The Board may 
elect to establish a $5,000 threshold. Those organizations that 
contribute $5,000 or more would be considered a Voting 
Member. Those contributing less than $5,000 would be 
considered a Non-Voting Member. 
 

(2) Non-Voting Member: The representative from an organization that 
makes a financial contribution to this plan and its programs, but does 
not meet the financial threshold established by the Board to be a 
Voting Member. Non-Voting Members may contribute discussion on 
Board related issues, but they shall not cast a vote on Board decisions. 
 

(3) Executive Board Chairperson: Annually the Executive Board shall vote 
on a Chairperson to schedule and preside over its meetings. The 
Chairperson shall be from a Voting Member organization, and may 
cast a vote on issues before the Board. 
 

(4) Financial Officer: Annually the Executive Board shall vote on a 
Financial Officer to oversee the finances concerning this plan and its 
programs. The Financial Officer may be from a Voting or Non-Voting 
Member organization, but may cast a vote on issues before the Board 



Page 13 of 20 
 

only if a Voting Member. The Financial Officer shall provide a year-end 
report to the Executive Board on all finances related to this plan and its 
programs. 

b. Advisory Board 

 The Advisory Board is comprised of a representative from each organization that 
contributes in-kind services, staff, or facilities that are involved in this plan or its 
programs. The Executive Board shall make final decisions if there is a dispute as 
to whether an organization or person should be seated as an Advisory Board 
Member. 

 The Advisory Board may provide input to the Executive Board as requested by 
the Executive Board. Or the Advisory Board may provide input to the Executive 
Board on its own volition as it deems necessary.  

 The TC-GIVES Chairperson shall be a member of the Advisory Board.  

 Input to the Executive Board is only advisory in nature. The Advisory Board shall 
have no voting rights with the Executive Board. 

(1) Advisory Board Chairperson: Annually the Advisory Board shall decide 
upon a Chairperson to schedule and preside over its meetings. The 
Chairperson shall provide input to the Executive Board on behalf of the 
Advisory Board. 

c. Program Director 

 The Program Director is a paid full-time position that reports directly to the 
Executive Board. An Administrative Agency (see below) will handle the Program 
Director’s payroll. The Executive Board shall determine the salary and specifics 
of how the Program Director shall be carried by the Administrative Agency (i.e. 
consultant or full-time employee). 

 The Director shall provide reports and information, including financial reports or 
documentation, to the Executive Board as directed. 

 The Director shall identify facilities to be used by staff members. 

 The Director shall oversee and have authority and responsibility for the daily 
operations of this plan and its programs. Some of these daily operations may 
include, but are not limited to: 

• Be responsible for meeting program goals, objectives and strategies. 



Page 14 of 20 
 

• Identify and work in cooperation with any organization, group or individual 
that may be needed to achieve goals, objectives and strategies of this 
plan or its programs. 

• Administrate and supervise the Administrative Assistant, Street Outreach 
Workers, and any other paid position that is a part of this plan or its 
programs. 

• Oversee necessary research and work with the Research Partner. 
• Oversee and be responsible for any media campaign, and work with the 

Media Campaign Partner. 
• Oversee the Gang Intervention Team (GIT). Schedule GIT meetings and 

preside over its meetings. 
• In partnership with area schools, law enforcement, and other community 

or social organizations, provide community workshops and training to 
increase community and business awareness about gangs, and to provide 
for a forum to collect concerns, challenges and solutions. 

• Attend and participate in Executive Board meetings, Advisory Board 
meetings, and any other meeting that is pertinent to achieving the goals, 
objectives and strategies of this plan or its programs. 

The qualifications for, and desired knowledge and skill of, the Program Director 
includes: 

• Minimum of a Bachelor’s degree in social sciences, criminal justice, law 
and policy or other related field. A Master’s degree is preferred.  

• Three years of progressive supervision and management experience in 
social service field, including directing personnel, management, and 
budgeting. 

• Familiarity with local agencies schools, social services, law enforcement, 
courts and corrections, local units of government, and community groups 
or organizations. 

• Knowledge of principles and practices of budget preparation. 
• Knowledge of principles and practices of goals, objective, strategies, and 

strategic planning. 
• Knowledge or principles of supervision, training, and performance 

evaluations. 
• Basic understanding of gang prevention, intervention, reintegration, and 

other gang-related activities. 
• Basic understanding of statistical principles and data analysis. 
• Network effectively with various types of organizations, including 

government agencies, law enforcement agencies, schools, social service 
agencies, court/probation/corrections, and community organizations. 



Page 15 of 20 
 

• Possess organization, administration, and personnel management skills. 
• Work effectively with key community leaders and residents, diverse 

population groups, and youth. 
• Work with high-risk, gang-involved populations. 
• Interpret and apply federal, state, and local policies, procedures, laws and 

regulations. 
• Analyze problems, identify alternate solutions, project consequences of 

proposed actions, and implement recommendation in support of goals, 
objectives and strategies. 

• Gain cooperation and collaboration through discussion and persuasion. 
• Exercise judgment regarding appropriate information sharing, 

confidentiality requirements, and human relations. 
• Assist in the selection of project staff and train, supervise and evaluate 

staff. 
• Communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing. 
• Set priorities and work independently in the absence of supervision. 
• Use word processing and spreadsheet software (MS Word, Excel). 

Knowledge of statistical software packages (i.e. SPSS or SAS) preferred. 

d. Administrative Assistant 

The Administrative Assistant is a paid position that reports directly to the 
Program Director. An Administrative Agency (see below) will handle the 
Administrative Assistant’s payroll. The Executive Board shall determine the 
salary and specifics of how the Administrative Assistant shall be carried by the 
Administrative Agency. 

The Administrative Assistant’s duties and responsibilities include, but are not 
limited to: 

• Handling clerical duties. 
• Answering phones. 
• Make referrals to appropriate community or social organizations or groups. 
• Use word processing and spreadsheet software (MS Word, Excel).  
• Working well with various individuals, groups and organizations, to include 

volunteers. 
• Work with at-risk and gang-involved youth. 
• Track organization finances and prepare financial reports. 

• Handle other duties and tasks assigned by the Program Director. 

 



Page 16 of 20 
 

e. Research Partner 

 The Research Partner should be a university, college or other education-based 
organization that volunteers students to conduct research projects necessary for 
this plan or its programs. The Research Partner will work directly with, and at the 
request of, the Program Director. 

f. Media Campaign Partner 

 The Media Campaign Partner should be a university, college or other education-
based organization that volunteers students to help create, and deliver, media 
campaigns to targeted neighborhoods and at-risk youth. The Program Director 
will be ultimately responsible for development of the media campaign. The Media 
Campaign Partner will work directly with, and at the request of, the Program 
Director. 

g. Gang Intervention Team (GIT) 

 The Gang Intervention Team (GIT) will work with the Program Director to target 
at-risk youth in need of intensive case management and supervision. The group 
will primarily provide in-kind services, and will meet bi-weekly. They will be 
responsible for accepting referrals and creating intervention plans that are 
matched to the youth and family. 

The GIT will include, but not be limited to, the following: 

• Law enforcement representatives, 
• Benton/Franklin Counties Juvenile Court probation staff, 
• Benton and Franklin County Prosecutors Office, 
• Mental health and substance abuse personnel, 
• School officials, 
• Work Source (job placement), 
• Street Outreach Workers, 
• Department of Social and Health Services, 
• Faith-based community representative (such as Victory Outreach and 

other identified neighborhood based churches), 
• Latino Community Leaders Group representatives, 

• Power Zone (youth serving tutoring and support grassroots agency). 

h. Street Outreach Workers 

 Street Outreach Workers are paid personnel who are bi-lingual and bi-cultural 
that report directly to the Program Director. An Administrative Agency (see 



Page 17 of 20 
 

below) will handle their payroll. The Executive Board shall determine the salary 
and specifics of how they shall be carried by the Administrative Agency. 

 The Street Outreach Workers will build relationships with at-risk youth and their 
families. They will be involved in prevention, intervention and reintegration as 
assigned by the Project Director. 

i. At-Risk and Gang Involved Advisory Group 

 The At-Risk and Gang Involved Advisory Group are volunteer at-risk youths or 
youths currently, or formerly, involved in gangs. Their purpose is to provide input 
to the Program Director to help make this plan or its programs as pertinent as 
possible to at-risk and gang-involved youths. They may be particularly helpful in 
determining media campaign strategies. 

 This group may provide input to the Executive Board and/or Advisory Board as 
requested by the respective Boards. 

j. Administrative Agency 

 The Executive Board shall identify an Administrative Agency to handle the payroll 
for paid staff members. The Administrative Agency shall be a Voting Member 
Agency. In conjunction with the Administrative Agency, the Executive Board shall 
determine the pay wages, and how staff will be classified by the Administrative 
Agency. Paid staff members for this program will follow the employment rules of, 
and have the same employee rights offered by, the Administrative Agency. 

k. Inter-Local Agreement 

 The Inter-Local Agreement shall be a legally binding contract signed by any 
organization, group, or individual, paid or volunteer, that provides financial 
support, in-kind services, staff or facilities for this plan or its programs. 

 Signees shall agree to abide by the condition of the Inter-Local Agreement, which 
shall incorporate this proposed plan. 

 The Inter-Local Agreement will be prepared by a representative from the Benton 
or Franklin County Prosecutors Office. 



Page 18 of 20 
 

4. Program Options 

It is difficult to recommend parameters of a specific program without knowing the 
amount of available funding. Consequently the following program options, with financial 
estimates,16

Option 1: Minimal Funding (Funding Range from $86,300 to $135,147) 

 are offered based upon the amount of available funding. 

• Creation of an Executive Board. See Section B3a. Financial Impact: $500 
annually for supplies and materials (i.e. notebooks, printing, basic office 
supplies). 

• Creation of an Advisory Board. See Section B3b. Financial Impact: $500 annually 
for supplies and materials. 

• Creation of a Gang Intervention Team (GIT). See Section B3g. Financial Impact: 
$500 annually for supplies and materials. 

• Creation of an At-Risk and Gang Involved Advisory Group. See Section B3i. 
Financial Impact: $500 annually for supplies and materials. 

• Creation of a full-time Program Director. See Section B3c. Financial Impact: 
Anticipated minimum of $64,000 to a maximum of $77,000 annually, depending 
upon qualifications and as determined by the Executive Board. There may be a 
possible benefits package of $26,852 (2011 figure) based upon payroll status as 
determined by the Executive Board and Administrative Agency. 

• Creation of a part-time (20 hrs/week) Administrative Assistant. See Section B3d. 
Financial Impact: $20,300 annually. There may be a possible benefits package of 
$8,995 (2011 figure) based upon payroll status as determined by the Executive 
Board and Administrative Agency. 

• Identification of a minimal number of targeted neighborhoods and youths for 
specific programs. The age group for targeted youths will be most restrictive (i.e. 
ages 12-14) due to limited resources. Specific details to be determined by the 
Executive Board in conjunction with the Program Director. 

Option 2: Moderate Funding (Funding Range from $136,059 to $193,811). 

All the items mentioned in Option 1, plus: 

• Upgrading the Administrative Assistant to a full-time position. Financial Impact: 
$40,599 (total salary cost) annually. There may be a possible benefits package of 
$17,900 (2011 figure) based upon payroll status as determined by the Executive 
Board and Administrative Agency. 

                                                           
16 The cost estimates listed for this proposal were taken from the original federal grant application. The Program 
Director position is the equivalent of a Benton County employee step 19I. The Administrative Assistant position 
was also obtained from the Benton County employment schedule. 



Page 19 of 20 
 

• Creating two (2) part-time (20 hrs/week each person) Street Outreach Workers 
See Section B3h. Financial Impact: $24,960 ($12.00 per hour) annually. 

• Creation of a Research Partner. See Section B3e. Financial Impact: $4,500 
annually. 

• Increase the number of targeted neighborhoods and youths for specific 
programs. Increase the age group for targeted youths (i.e. ages 10 to 15). 

Option 3: Premium Funding (Funding Range from $164,019 to $221,771). 

All the items mentioned in Option 2, plus: 

• Upgrading to a total of four (4) part-time (20 hrs/week each person) Street 
Outreach Workers. Financial Impact: $49,920 (total salary cost) annually. 

• Creation of a Media Campaign Partner. See Section B3f. Financial Impact: 
$3,000 annually. 

• Increase the number of targeted neighborhoods and youths for specific 
programs. Increase the age group for targeted youths (i.e. ages 10 to 18). 

 

Refer to the table on the next page for financial details of the different options. 

  



Page 20 of 20 
 

Financial Details: 

Item Minimal 
Cost 

Maximum 
Cost 

Additional 
Costs 

Comments 

     
Option 1     

Executive Board $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Advisory Board $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Gang Intervention Team $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
At-Risk Advisory Group $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Director $64,000 $77,000 $26,852 

(Benefits) 
Range and benefits to be determined by 
Executive Board 

Assistant $20,300 $20,300 $8,995 
(Benefits) 

Benefits to be determined by Executive 
Board 

Option 1 Total Costs $86,300 $135,147  Maximum includes all potential benefits  
     

Option 2     
Executive Board $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Advisory Board $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Gang Intervention Team $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
At-Risk Advisory Group $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Director $64,000 $77,000 $26,852 

(Benefits) 
Range and benefits to be determined by 
Executive Board 

Assistant $40,599 $40,599 $17,900 
(Benefits) 

Benefits to be determined by Executive 
Board 

Street Outreach Workers $24,960 $24,960   
Research Partner $4,500 $4,500   
Option 2 Total Costs $136,059 $193,811  Maximum includes all potential benefits 
     

Option 3     
Executive Board $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Advisory Board $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Gang Intervention Team $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
At-Risk Advisory Group $500 $500  Supplies and materials 
Director $64,000 $77,000 $26,852 

(Benefits) 
Range and benefits to be determined by 
Executive Board 

Assistant $40,599 $40,599 $17,900 
(Benefits) 

Benefits to be determined by Executive 
Board 

Street Outreach Workers $49,920 $49,920   
Research Partner $4,500 $4,500   
Media Campaign Partner $3,000 $3,000   
Option 3 Total Costs $164,019 $221,771  Maximum includes all potential benefits 

 



CurrentUser
Text Box
Adult and Juvenile Drug Court – P Austin






















	Web Packet 112211.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 111511
	CA - Animal Control a
	CA - Board of Equalization b
	CA - Commissioners c
	CA - Commissioners d
	CA - Facilities e
	CA - Fairgrounds f
	CA - Fairgrounds g
	CA - Human Services h
	CA - Human Services i
	CA - Human Services j
	CA - Human Services k
	CA - Human Services l
	CA - Human Services m
	CA - Juvenile n
	CA - Personnel o
	CA - Prosecuting Attorney p
	CA - Public Works q
	CA - Public Works r
	CA - Public Works s
	CA - Public Works t
	CA - Sheriff u
	CA - Sheriff v
	CA - Sheriff w
	PH - a Continued KID Vacation
	PH - b Certifying Taxes & Readoption of Road
	PH - b(1) Road Expeditures
	PH - b(2) Road Revenues
	Timed - c Comprehensive Gang Intervention Program
	Timed - d Superior Court Line Item Transfer



